ortsmouth
etlands Board
AGENDA
PORTSMOUTH WETLANDS BOARD PUBLIC HEARING
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2020 AT 3:30 P.M.
MICROSOFT TEAMS VIRTUAL MEETING
804-294-1932
Conference ID: 355 825 707#
1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ATTENDANCE
3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM AUGUST 5, 2020
4. PUBLIC HEARING ITEM
VMRC#20-0699: The Norfolk Naval Shipyard requests a wetlands permit for
fence repair and shoreline stabilization at the St. Julien’s Creek Annex. The
property is located along the Southern Branch of the Elizabeth River.
5. NEW BUSINESS
6. ITEMS FROM BOARD MEMBERS
7. NON-AGENDA SPEAKERS/ITEMS
8. ADJOURNMENT
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(Meeting called to order at 3:30 p.m.)
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Good afternoon, ladies
and gentlemen. I would like to welcome you to -- all
to this very important meeting today, Wednesday,
August 5th, 2020, being held in the Microsoft Teams
Platform via video conference. Please note this
meeting will be recorded and feature public comment.
Board members are asked to mute your
microphones when you're not speaking and to verbally
identify yourself prior to making comments.
Madam Secretary.
MS. PORTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
For the record, this is Stacy Porter,
Senior Planner for the Portsmouth Planning Department.
I will now confirm that all members of the Wetlands
Board are present and here by calling the role.
Board members, when I call your name,
please reply with a verbal response.
Don Smith.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Present.
MS. PORTER: Jennifer Monument.
Patrick Goold.
MR. GOOLD: Present.
MS. PORTER: Douglas Union.
MR. UNION: Present.
MS. PORTER: Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: Present.
MS. PORTER: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: I am here.
MS. PORTER: Five members of the
Portsmouth Wetlands Board are present.
The public meeting of the Wetlands Board
is being conducted remotely consistent with Governor
Northam's March 12, 2020, Executive Order, due to the
current state of emergency in the Commonwealth given
the outbreak of COVID 19. A forum of the Board is not
visibly present in the meeting location, but members
have joined remotely.
Further, all members of public bodies are
allowed and encouraged to participate remotely.
The Order, which you will find posted on
the City's Planning Department web page for the
materials for this meeting, allows public bodies to
meet entirely remotely so long as reasonable public
access is afforded so that the public can follow along
with the deliberations of the meeting.
Ensuring public access does not ensure
public participation unless such participation is
required by law. This meeting will be recorded and
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feature public comment. Even if members of the public
do not provide comment, participants are advised that
people may be listening who do not provide comment, and
those persons are not required to identify themselves
for this meeting.
For this meeting, the Wetlands Board is
convening by video conference via the Microsoft Teams
app as posted on the City's website identifying how the
public may join.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Board members, before
you are the minutes of the July 1st, 2020, public
hearing. Do any board members have any corrections or
changes to the minutes? If so, please state your name
before stating the changes.
If there aren't any changes, we are in
need of a motion to approve the minutes. Can I get a
motion and a second?
Board members, before making a motion,
please identify yourself.
So I need a motion and a second, and
unmute yourself.
MR. CALVERT: This is Rich Calvert. I
motion that we approve the minutes from the previous
month's meeting.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: And a second? And
unmute yourself.
MR. UNION: Douglas Union. I second the
motion.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Madam Secretary.
MS. PORTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
We have a motion and a second to approve
the minutes from the July 1st, 2020, public hearing.
Board members, as I call your name,
please reply with a verbal response to both.
Donald Smith.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Yes.
MS. PORTER: Jennifer Monument.
Patrick Goold.
MR. GOOLD: Yes.
MS. PORTER: Douglas Union.
MR. UNION: Yes.
MS. PORTER: Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: Yes.
MS. PORTER: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: Yes.
MS. PORTER: The minutes have been
approved by a vote of 5 to 0.
VRMC#20-0846
MS. PORTER: Our first public hearing
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item is VMRC#20-0846, David R. Butler with Gallup
Surveyors and Engineers on behalf of Donald and Kym
Edelman request a wetlands permit to construct riprap
revetment at 416 and 418 Pennington Boulevard. The
property is located upon the Western Branch of the
Elizabeth River.
The project agent will present the
application at this time. Thank you for stating your
name and address for the record. When you desire to
have a slide advanced, please state the phrase "next
slide." At the conclusion of your presentation our
Chairman will provide an opportunity for each Board
member to ask questions.
And Dave, you can go ahead and proceed.
MR. BUTLER: Okay. Thank you, Stacy.
My name's Dave Butler. I'm with Gallup
Surveyors and Engineers. I represent Donald and Kym
Edelman, and thank you for hearing this today,
Mr. Chairman and members of the Board.
And this project, when we first looked at
it, there was -- well, the owner was talking about
using Flexamat. She had talked with some contractors.
And then they got me involved in it, and I looked at it
and I had my doubts about the Flexamat because we're
looking almost four miles downriver, a lot of fetch
there and there's a lot of erosion. And I don't know
how many of y'all have seen the project, but there's
riprap in places and there's a failing wood bulkhead,
if you can even call it a bulkhead.
So we got the Flexamat rep out there. He
looked at it. He said it was borderline, but he said
he thinks he can make it work. So we prepared plans
and filed them, and Stacy liked the project. We liked
it. However, they got prices back on it, and it was
more than they had budgeted for the project, so they
asked me to switch it over to riprap. I let them know
that a component of riprap is a living shoreline when
it'll work. I said I don't believe it'll work in this
case. I think we're better off with the Flexamat
because the representative said he would guarantee it.
I had my doubts about it anyway, but we went -- we went
and decided to use the riprap.
So she's had a contractor out there -- I
don't know who it was -- and he didn't think a living
shoreline would work. We'd be putting a mound of
riprap out over the mud flat and pile it up a foot or
two above mean high water, and then we would have to
still back the riprap to the existing slope.
So even if it worked, it adds a
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tremendous amount of cost, and I have my doubts ever
since this last storm and other storms we've seen come
through there that a living shoreline would work with
that amount of fetch. I've worked on several of them
over the years, and all of them are working fine. I've
not worked on one with this kind of fetch. I really
didn't want to do anything with this because of the
liability reasons. And that's -- that's where we're
at. And I request respectfully that you look at this
for what it is.
We have no problem paying an in-lieu fee
for the, I think it was, 8 or 9 square feet of
Baccharis. What they have right now is, you know, a
failing wall and -- well, not even riprap, but just
broken concrete rubble with no filter cloth on it. The
owners have been there, I think they told me, three or
four years, and they've lost 5 to 10 feet of property
already. We need to do something with it. And I know
the living shoreline, the methods that VMRC wants us to
take, we just disagree with that.
And that's about all I can say right now.
I'll be glad to answer any questions you might have.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Board members -MR. CALVERT: This is Rick Calvert. I've
got a question for Mr. Butler.
MR. BUTLER: Yes, sir.
MR. CALVERT: David, what is this new
riprap going over? Is it upland yard, or is it
nonvegetated wetlands?
MR. BUTLER: It's a little bit of both.
We're going to have -- I've got it cut up into phases.
Phase 1 there's 136 square feet. Phase 2 is 90 or 79
square feet. But all of that is in the toe. That's
just digging the toe out. That's the impact. There's
no loss. It's just an impact.
The majority of this stone is above high
water going up the slope. I don't know if you've been
to the site or not, but -- or if you've got any
pictures you can show the rest of the team. But most
of the impacts are down where the toe is going to be
dug out. And I want to put a toe in because of the
fetch and the wave action; it'll undermine it
otherwise.
There is some rock habitat out there
already, 68 square feet. That's in the intertidal
zone. We're going to remove that, put cloth down and
put Class II on top of it. You may note my plans are
calling out Class II because of the fetch.
MR. CALVERT: Yes, I did notice that.
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This is Richard Calvert again. So the owners are
actually giving up yard to put riprap in it?
MR. BUTLER: Correct.
MR. CALVERT: Am I saying that correctly?
MR. BUTLER: That's correct. We're
putting it back 2 to 1. 1 1/2 to 1, as you know, is
acceptable but not with that kind of fetch and not with
that weight in stone. I went with 2 to 1.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: This is Don Smith.
So the decision tree of VIMS, I guess, is
they would really like to see the Flexamat, and we
would kind of be going against their guidance to
approve the use of riprap. And I understand the fetch
is considerable, but you feel that it's just -- it's
not going to work, Flexamat is not going to work, or is
this a cost issue or a combination?
MR. BUTLER: It's a combination. I
didn't want to use the Flexamat. And I called the
manufacturer, and they sent a rep out. We walked it
with VMRC in Portsmouth out in the rain one day. And
he looked at it. He says, I think I can make it work.
It's marginal, but I think I can make it work.
The problem I have with that is, you
know, if it doesn't work, then we're going to have to
come back in front of you and ask that we do something
different. I mean, we would all like it to work. And
the cost of it right now is about 40 percent above what
we were looking at today.
The problem I have with these kind of
iffy jobs is the liability. If something goes wrong,
you know, this is my plan. I get to fight it out in
court with the owner and the expert witness.
You know, the Flexamat would probably
hold. I doubt any vegetation that you would put in the
sills would hold very long. And it's got cloth
underneath it built into it, so you only have a few
inches of soil there for it to stick to. I've used it
on dead end canals and not had any trouble with it at
all. It's a beautiful product. But this is -- we're
facing, you know, on extreme days we're looking at 3
and 4-foot waves coming in at it, and it's -- I don't
have a good feeling about it.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: So even putting a -putting a sill in front of the Flexamat wouldn't -you'd have to have too big of a sill to break that wave
energy?
MR. BUTLER: Well, at that point I would
probably rather go up at least 2 feet above high tide.
And if you look at the guidelines for the Type II
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permit, they want you to go a foot above high tide I'd
rather be 2 or 3 feet. But, remember, when you put
that sill in, you've got a 2-to-1 slope on the backside
to the front side, meaning you've got twice as much
rock. And then on top of that you've got the Flexamat
to put in. It's cost prohibitive to do that with this
amount.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Okay.
MR. BUTLER: But, yeah, I would agree
with you it probably would work if we did it that way.
MS. PEABODY: This is Rachael Peabody,
VMRC. I want to be clear. We don't have or I don't
have a stance on the project, but that's not my goal
here. When I was speaking with Mr. Butler, I made it
clear that I wanted to make sure that it is discussed
why a living shoreline was not used in this case to
help the Board deliberate with that provision.
Part of our review process is to make
sure that you're actually reviewing why or why not a
living shoreline is possible, and so VMRC doesn't
support the project one way or the another. It's just
we're here as a review board, and we don't want to push
you in a particular direction for your approval. So my
goal and my comments while we're reviewing the
application is, please make sure you're clear on why
you feel like a living shoreline is not appropriate.
MR. CALVERT: So this is Richard Calvert
again, and I guess I have a question for Stacy and
Rachael. Do we have anything to say about this project
above the 1.5 line, or is that beyond our jurisdiction?
MS. PORTER: Are you talking about -- go
ahead, Rachael.
MS. PEABODY: Sorry. Your jurisdiction
is mean low water to the 1.52-inch tide range where
there's vegetation. Above that you can use that in
your review to decide -- to help you understand the
project. You cannot vote on anything above your
jurisdiction.
MS. PORTER: Thanks, Rachael.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Rich, what was your
concern about the 1.5, about things beyond our
jurisdiction? What was your concern?
MR. CALVERT: Well, my concern, I guess,
is I believe that the fetch is substantial on this, and
so we need something at the base of the hill that's
going to take that wave energy. And by the time that
you put in Class II effectively you're going to be
right about at the limits of our jurisdiction anyway.
About the only thing I can see that we could do to
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improve this and to be some sort of a living shoreline
component were to be doing some sort of vegetation, but
we don't have the jurisdiction above the 1.5 line to
implement that. So I believe that based on what I'm
seeing that this is what's necessary to handle the
fetch first and foremost, and then above that may not
be our decision to make. That's all I'm trying to
decide here in my own mind.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Got you. So because of
the fetch and the slope, there's just no -- you don't
see -- you're saying there's not a lot of room to
establish some kind of living shoreline.
MR. CALVERT: Yes. I do not see that
being feasible there. The Flexamat is something that I
believe should be at a higher elevation than down there
where the high wave energy is at anyway. So I didn't
even consider that as much of an option down there
below mean high water.
The fetch is the one thing that's pushing
me away from the living shoreline. I don't know if
there's some other items that Mr. Butler could -- could
add that would also reinforce our thoughts on a
planting option not being the best choice out here.
But first and foremost, that's a pretty good fetch, and
I don't know that, you know, once you get above that,
that 1.5, I just think it gets a little sketchy trying
to implement something. That's all.
MR. BUTLER: Richard, this is David
again, if I could have the floor for a second.
As you know, Stacy has a program based on
land disturbance. She wants us to vegetate around the
property, not so much wetlands plants but uplands
plants. And where -- she's going to get with us after
this hearing, after we get something approved be it
this meeting or another meeting, on planting canopy
trees, shrubs and understory trees. I've got that
quantified on C-22.
For the record, on C-22 there's still a
note referencing Flexamat. Disregard that. It should
have been erased.
But what we want to do, and if you look
really closely at the plans you'll see -- you'll see
mean low water goes to 7, 8 and 9. Mean low water
is -- is several feet out from where we're working.
We're not -- we're not in that zone at all. Mean high
tide is close to where my toe is. So again, my impacts
are all down where the toe is. There's 7, 8, 9 square
feet of Baccharis, just patches here and there. You
can just physically count them. Other than those
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Little patches of Baccharis, we don't have any
vegetation other than lawn and weeds.
So we're -- most of this project is out
of the Wetlands Board's jurisdiction. However, for
that land disturbance, we're going to come back and
present a planting plan for uplands plants. You won't
be getting -- you won't be getting any wetlands plants,
per se, other than what we'll -- we'll pay into the
wetlands bank later on, but you're going to be
getting -- getting rid of quite a bit of lawn due to
the source of pollution and get canopy trees back.
So I feel like it's a good compromise. I
think even if money was no object, this is still not
really a candidate for a living shoreline because of
the four-mile fetch. That's all I have.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: This is Don Smith.
Rachael, I'd like to get VMRC's or your
opinion on the viability, possibility, of the Flexamat
in this particular project.
MS. PEABODY: Again, because I'm the
field board and I'm the review board, I can't put you
in a direction. I can only tell you what you can
evaluate or can't evaluate. And currently, the code of
Virginia says a living shoreline uses the default
method unless the best available science says otherwise
and that if the best available science says otherwise,
then other living shorelines requirements should be
included if possible, which is the discussion you're
having right now.
There's other tools that -- that Stacy
is -- has available such as the CCRM website that shows
the GIS analysis of what should go on there. Those are
all tools that are available to the Board to look at
for deciding whether a living shoreline here is
possible or not.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you.
Other Board members, any questions for
our panel here?
If there are no more questions, we will
proceed.
Madam Secretary.
MS. PORTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
As staff liaison to the Wetlands Board, I
will provide my staff recommendation at this time, and
I'll just basically go over that AMC analysis that was
in your staff report.
And also, I did want to mention, I know
that Dave mentioned sheet 22. That was not included in
your packet because that would have been more focused.
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on our Chesapeake Bay ordinance review. So I didn't
include that, but I just wanted to let you know why.
So for avoidance, the property -- the
project, rather, the original scope of the project was
rather large, and Mr. Butler did scale it back. I felt
that he did a really good job scaling it back as well
as retaining about 66 linear feet of existing riprap
revetment. They will not touch that section of
shoreline. So I felt that the project properly avoided
impacts.
The property -- the property, even though
it's fairly substantial, they did minimize encroachment
into the tide wetland area impacting only approximately
eight plus square feet of vegetated wetlands and
approximately 218 square feet of nonvegetated wetlands.
And as compensation, the project agent
has agreed to purchasing the full nine mitigation
credits from a local tidal mitigation bank, and as is
your policy they are required to do that in order to be
issued their wetlands permit.
I am recommending approval of the
applicants' request. And I think Mr. Butler mentioned,
too, that he and I have been in discussions about the
upper portions of the yard. We will be working with
them on the front end review, so perhaps out of that
we're going to get that vegetation that you-all were
concerned about. You know, they will get that upland
shoreline vegetation. But again, I'm recommending
approval.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you.
Board members, do you have any questions
of planning staff?
Donald Smith. I have none.
Jennifer Monument.
Patrick Goold.
MR. GOOLD: No. I have no questions, and
I -- I'd like to congratulate the planning staff on
the -- the packet they sent out. It makes things very
very clear.
MS. PORTER: Oh, thank you.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Doug Union.
MR. UNION:
I'm good with the project.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: No. I have no questions of
staff, and I would like to just make one other
observation for everyone else too.
There is mean low waters out in front of
the existing revetment. If there was a chance for the
Spartina to thrive in this area, I think that we would
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start to see some, but I think that it's probably -the opportunity for it is out there because it has
exposed mud at low tide. I think that we're finding
that it's very harsh conditions, and it almost makes me
feel a little bit more comfortable with approving the
project as well.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: No other questions at this
time.
MS. PORTER: All right. Ladies and
gentlemen, we will now begin the public hearing.
The public hearing on item VMRC#20-0846,
if there's someone on the call who would like to
address this application, you may do so at this time.
Press "Star 6" to unmute your phone, state your name
and the address for the record, and you will be given
up to five minutes to speak.
Mr. Chairman, it appears that there are
no public comments.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Okay. Then we don't
have any questions to the public, then, from Board
members. Do you want to just proceed with the next
part of -MS. PORTER: We'll do the voting.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Okay. All right. Is
there any more discussion on item VMRC#20-0846?
If not, we are in need of a motion and a
second on item VMRC#20-0846.
Board members, keep in mind the staff
recommendation for this item.
Board members, before making a motion
please identify yourself.
MR. GOOLD: This is Patrick Goold, and I
move that we approve this request.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: And I need a second.
MR. CALVERT: This is Richard Calvert. I
second.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you.
It has been motioned and properly
seconded to approve the public hearing item. Board
members, as I call your name please reply with a verbal
response vote.
Don Smith. Yes.
Jennifer Monument.
Patrick Goold.
MR. GOOLD: Yes.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Doug Union.
MR. UNION: Yes.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Rich Calvert.
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MR. CALVERT: Yes.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: Yes.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Item VMRC#20-0846 was
approved by a vote of 5 to 0.
NEW BUSINESS:
MS. PORTER: Board members, we will now
proceed on to the new business.
Your Virginia Marine Resources Commission
representative Rachael Peabody would like to speak on
the living shorelines legislative update.
And Rachael, feel free to proceed with
your discussion.
MS. PEABODY: Okay. Thank you. Can you
confirm that the Board has received my -- the memo that
we issued in May?
MS. PORTER: Yes. And Board members, we
did email out a copy of that memo to you-all. I think
I did it Friday, so I'm hoping that you-all have it.
MS. PEABODY: Okay. So -- so this -- my
discussion, which will not be very long, is basically
to just go over the specific, the memo and maybe to
update the Board a little bit more on -- on where we
are with the guideline updates.
So Senate Bill 776 was passed and became
effective on July 1, and it's the reason why I -- I
wanted to make sure that the Board had a conversation
today about living shorelines because this legislation
was enacted to strengthen the living shoreline concept
in board approvals of any projects they're in on
board's jurisdiction.
Specifically it says the Commission shall
permit only living shoreline approaches to shoreline
management unless the best available science shows that
such approaches are not suitable. The code itself
doesn't define "best available science," and so that is
something we are working on through the guideline
updates. It does -- and then it says, If the best
available science shows that a living shoreline is not
suitable, then the Commission shall require the
applicant to incorporate as many elements of the living
shoreline approach into the permitted project as
possible. So that is really the strongest portion that
the Wetlands Board, the most important thing for the
Wetlands Boards to know.
In addition, the update, also, for
Wetlands Boards, tells -- tells the Wetlands Board that
in order to consider an application complete, it must
have a description of why a living shoreline was
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evaluated for a project and why the applicant
determined that it was not suitable application. So
VMRC and DEQ and the Corps of Engineers are going to
update the JPA so that it specifically asks an
applicant for that statement, but I recommend to the
Board that part of their discussion or review process
is just asking the applicant, you know, to provide a
statement indicating whether a living shoreline was
practical or not and why to get the conversation
started in every project that has to do with shoreline
stabilization.
The big part of the SSB 776 really gives
my agency, the VMRC, the biggest workload. So they
asked us to update our guidelines, which hadn't been
updated since the early '90s so it's definitely time
for them to do that, and it gave us some specific
requirements for those guidelines.
It wanted us to communicate to our
stakeholders, which are property owners and the
Wetlands Boards, the new policy or the existing policy
but now strengthened to support living shorelines. And
it also tells us that we need to identify preferred
shoreline management approaches for particular types of
shorelines, explain the risks and benefits of those
approaches, and then to start to recommend procedures
to achieve efficiency and effectiveness by all the
regulatory entities when evaluating shoreline
properties. So the VMRC is working on -- it's
currently working on that guideline update.
I wanted to point you and the Board to
two particular dates that are going to be helpful in
the process. The first is August 20th where CCRM is
going to be doing their -- CCRM is a portion of VIMS
that -- our Center for Coastal Resources Management.
They're going to be doing a webinar where they're going
to be discussing a lot of the legislative changes but
also rolling out a new decision tool. That is already
available on the website if you want to play with it a
little bit, but the decision tool is their take on how
each wetlands board or even local landowner can use
this tool to determine whether their site is suitable
for a living shoreline or not. It's taking kind of a
lot of the weaknesses of the GIS mapping that we have
right now and allows the user to input specific
information that the map hasn't been able to pick up
on.
So I'm really interested in local
wetlands boards and regulators and homeowners on their
input on this tool and how it can be used for
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determining a best available science. Because it seems
like if we can get it to the point where we all agree
it's actually giving us the best available science,
it's a great place to start when the Board wants to
have discussions just like this.
So this allows -- so in this case this
tool would have allowed you to tell it about what the
fetch was, how many linear feet of the shoreline was,
and it would give you an output based off of the
information you put in.
So that will be, I think, of interest to
the Board. And again, that's on August 20th, and you
can sign up for that webinar.
And then I haven't officially scheduled
it, but I'm -- I'm just waiting for approval. After
that, on August 26th, I will be holding a webinar which
is going to be a listening session by the VMRC and the
DEQ for questions, concerns, ideas of what local
regulators and wetlands boards want to see in the
guideline updates. So what is it that you need from us
that we can clarify for you to help make your job
easier for reviewing individual projects, and so that's
going to be on the 26th.
There's going to be about nine -- because
it has to be Webex, there's going to be about seven to
eight primary speakers who will lead the conversation.
Those will be, you know, local regulators throughout
the Commonwealth, but everybody will have a chance to
log in and hopefully have helpful comment as we go
through the process. So that will be the first one
which is going to be August 26th. I will send Stacy an
invitation as soon as possible so that she can send it
to you-all.
And that's where we are on the process.
The hope or Richmond has told us we need to have these
guidelines updated by December, which is a big task,
and we're working -- we're working towards that. So
I'll take any help or ideas I can get from anybody in
that process. And that's -- that's everything.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you, Rachael.
Board members, do you have any questions
or comments for Rachael Peabody?
As I call your name, please reply with a
verbal response, and I'll start with me.
I really like the idea of the tool that
you've described. Fetch seems to be the biggest issue
of us not moving towards living shorelines on so many
projects we discuss, but I think it'd be -- it'd be
good to have a tool where we could look at on a
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computer screen and put in the parameters we -- we want
to look at and help make our decisions very
scientifically.
Okay. Jennifer Monument, are you here?
I'll ask for your question.
If not, Patrick Goold, any questions for
Rachael?
MR. GOOLD: No. Thank you.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Doug Union.
MR. UNION: No, but I am looking forward
to seeing that tool also because we have some pretty
smart people on the Board, and we pretty much know what
fetch does and what it is. But some of the projects
that goes through I notice the costs have always been
an issue also. Riprap is the cheapest way to go with
any bulkhead repairs or whatever, and it seems like the
cost of the cloth and the Flexamat and stuff like that
has a bearing on -- on what the project should really
be. So, you know, this tool would be a good thing for
us to work with.
And also a little bit more information
maybe put out from the Elizabeth River Project where
they have -- we've talked about a few times -- where
they do give assistance, and people that need or want
to have a living shoreline, that they will assist them
in getting it done. I think a little bit more
information put out to the people doing the projects
would probably help them a little bit, too, on us
making the decision. That's all I have.
MS. PEABODY: Thank you. And actually,
I'm glad you brought up cost because that is something
that I'm struggling with on how to put that in the
guidelines as compared to what the legislation says.
So I don't know a reasonable person can ignore costs, I
think, when it comes to a homeowner doing their work
and how do we incorporate that into the guideline when
the code specifically says we have to incorporate
living guidelines. So if somebody has any ideas, I'm
happy to hear them.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Rich Calvert, any
questions?
MR. CALVERT: No questions right now.
Thank you.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: No questions. But I'll be
glad to see the updated guidelines, and I'm certainly,
as the newbie, really interested in the decision tree
especially, too. That'll be great.
MR. GOOLD: This is Patrick Goold.
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Can I make -- one thing Douglas said
that -- that is interesting to me. We all know what
"fetch" is and what it does. And I think in a rough
term that's right, but I think defining its role in the
particular decision might be trickier than we think.
I really like what Rich said much
earlier. He said, Well, look, there's this exposed
land at low tide below the toe, and there's no -there's no vegetation. That indicates that vegetation
isn't viable there. But I'm here right on the
Elizabeth River, and I'm right where right in front of
my house the river comes straight. It's going straight
south at that point, and there's nothing in the way of
vegetation in front of that which is frequently exposed
at -- at low water. However, about 50 yards down the
river, if you look the river turns west at this point,
there's a lot of vegetation. Well, but that's the same
fetch, right? So it's not clear to me when fetch would
be a decider and when it's really not part of the
project.
MS. PEABODY: Well, thank you, Mr. Goold.
That's actually something that VIMS is trying to
incorporate into this, and I don't think they've been
able to do it. But the -- the orientation of the
shoreline, they're trying to model that in. Like,
they're -- you would be able to say, this is a
northeast facing, this is a southwest facing, and it
may -- it may give you a little bit more information on
what the model says you should do to put those details
in. And so one of the things that they want to hear, I
think, is some of those specific details that people
would like to see in there, and -- and orientation is
something that they're working on now.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you.
Board members, is there any further
business?
Board members, as I call your name,
please reply with a verbal response.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Don Smith. None.
Jennifer Monument.
Patrick Goold.
MR. GOOLD: No further business.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Doug Union.
MR. UNION: No further business.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Thank you.
Rich Calvert.
MR. CALVERT: No further.
CHAIRMAN SMITH: Ellen Comstock.
MS. COMSTOCK: None.

18

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CHAIRMAN SMITH: With no more agenda
items and no further discussion by Board members, this
meeting is now adjourned. Thank you.
(Meeting adjourned at 4:15 p.m.)
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APPLICATION: VMRC#20-0699
ADDRESS: St. Julien’s Creek Annex
APPLICANT: Norfolk Naval Shipyard
AGENTS: Hayley Becker, Luanette Roman-Lugo, Amy McKay, Aaron Clark, Deborah Brewster, Marjorie
Winemiller

Bridge Repair Partially in
Wetland Board’s
Jurisdiction

Project Involves
Wetland Conversion
(Mudflat to
Proposed Security
Vegetated)
Fence Posts
Partially in Wetland
Board’s Jurisdiction

The project agents with the U.S. Navy will provide a presentation during the Microsoft Teams meeting.
PROJECT DESCRIPTION


The project site is located on the Department of Navy’s St. Julien’s Creek Annex on the east side of the
property. The project site is located along the Middle Branch Section of the Elizabeth River.



According to the submitted Joint Permit Application, the project’s focus is: (1) the replacement of
perimeter security fence along the border of the St. Julien’s Creek Annex, including where it crosses the
mouth of Blows Creek and (2) the replacement of a wooden footbridge.



The original Joint Permit Application mentioned that the project involved the replacement of 215 linear
feet of 7 foot high-galvanized steel chain link fencing that is in disrepair.



The new security fencing will be approximately 173 linear feet with a height of 8 to 12 feet. The fence
within the water crossing area (as seen in the aerial photo above) will be fashioned with a structural
barricade along its lower extremity that will prevent water access to the St. Julien’s Creek Annex
property.



Seven (7) fence posts (with timber piles) within the water crossing area will encroach into non-vegetated
wetlands and subaqueous bottom. The remaining upland fence posts will be composed of galvanized
metal.



The project also involves the replacement of an existing wooden pedestrian bridge. The existing bridge
will be replaced with a prefabricated bridge span that will be 71 feet long and 16 wide and rest on a
concrete foundation.
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The bridge will be reinforced with 1,250 square feet of riprap revetment. The riprap will be underlain by
a reinforced polypropylene liner and be composed of both Class I (50 – 150 pounds/stone) and Class II
(150-500 pounds/stone) stone.



The proposed riprap will be coupled with the planting of a living marsh. This portion of the project
constitutes marsh conversion from mudflat to vegetation.



The marsh will be composed of 2,190 plugs of Spartina alterniflora and 2,066 plugs of Spartina patens.
Coconut coir logs will be placed along the perimeter of the marsh to provide marsh stabilization.
Waterfowl exclusion fencing will be erected to provide plant protection during marsh establishment.



All work will be conducted during low tide.
AMC ANALYSIS

Avoidance – The proposed project is located at a federal military facility. The project site contains fencing that
is in disrepair and a wooden access/footbridge that is unsafe for use. Without repairs, this area poses a security
risk to the naval facility. The original proposal involved the placement of approximately 3,600 square feet of
riprap revetment. The current plan is for 1,250 square feet of riprap, which is about two-thirds less than the
original proposal. In light of this, Planning Staff finds that the project agents have demonstrated that the project
avoids, to the greatest extent possible, unnecessary wetland impacts.
Minimization – Based upon the submitted project amendment received October 9, 2020 (the current proposal),
Planning Staff finds that the necessary impacts to wetlands have been minimized in order to provide erosion
control as well as security for the St. Julien’s Creek facility.
Compensation – The project involves only non-vegetated wetland impacts. As is the policy of the Board, no
compensation is required for these impacts. According to the application, the largest non-tidal wetlands impacts
include the bridge foundation with 1,460 square feet of impact and the Class I and Class II riprap with 1,150
square feet of impact. The fence posts and 70 linear foot water crossing structural barrier are minor, in
comparison.
LIVING SHORELINE ANALYSIS
A Senate Bill (SB776) was passed during the 2020 Legislative Session amending §§ 28.2-104.1, 28.2-1301,
28.2-1302, and 28.2-1308 of the Code of Virginia, relating to wetlands protection and living shorelines. The
provisions of this bill involved both the Virginia Marine Resources Commission (VMRC) and Local Wetlands
Boards, and became effective July 1, 2020.
The code update states, “the Commission shall permit only living shoreline approaches to shoreline
management unless the best available science shows that such approaches are not suitable. If the best available
science shows that a living shoreline approach is not suitable, the Commission shall require the applicant to
incorporate, to the maximum extent possible, elements of living shoreline approaches into permitted projects.”
Planning Staff finds that the project meets the intent of the aforementioned legislation. The project’s
intent is to secure the St. Julien’s Creek Annex property. The construction of only a Living Shoreline
would not be feasible or appropriate. However, the project adheres to the directive to “…incorporate to
the maximum extent possible elements of living shoreline approaches…” The establishment of a
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vegetated marsh through marsh conversion is an appropriate means of adhering to the state’s adopted
living shoreline legislation.
STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Planning Staff recommends the APPROVAL of the applicant’s request for the Security Fence and Bridge
Replacement with the following conditions (Condition #1 may be altered by the Board or the Project Agent
may request additional time due to the project being a federally funded endeavor.):

PROPOSED PERMIT CONDITIONS
1. The permit shall expire five (5) years after the date of issuance. The Board, in its discretion, may
provide a permit extension should one be required.
2. The project shall comply with the plans approved by the Portsmouth Wetlands Board, which will be
attached to the issued permit.
3. The project shall be constructed in accordance with the State of Virginia Erosion and Sediment Control
Manual standards including the use of an appropriate erosion and sediment control barrier during
construction.
4. A duly authorized agent of the Wetlands Board shall have the right to enter upon the premises, at a
reasonable time, for the purpose of inspecting the work being done pursuant to this permit.
5. The permittee shall, to the greatest extent practicable, minimize the adverse effects of the project upon
adjacent properties and wetlands and upon natural resources of the Commonwealth.
6. The permittee shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules and regulations affecting the
conduct of the project. The granting of this permit shall not relieve the permittee of the responsibility of
obtaining any and all other permits or authority required for the project.
7. This permit may be revoked at any time by the Board upon the failure of the permittee to comply with
any of the terms and conditions listed herein.
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